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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Originally built circa 1870, the Edward Reichardt House had two rooms
on a north/south axis and ‘a“third room on the west side of the south
room. The basic ell shape of these three rooms was filled in by a
porch on the north side of the ell.

The Reichardt House had several major additions in the two decades
after its construction. About 1878 two rooms with a central hall
were added to the west side.” The original porch became part of

the long east/west central hall. Also added in 1878 was a one storey
porch running along the new west elevation. The addition of this
porch gave the house a new facade and altered the primary entry from
the north to the west elevation.

The west porch spans the entire front elevation of the house. Slender
turned columns create five bays, the central bay being larger and
setting off the projecting two storey bay of the interior hallway.
There is no balustrade between the columns. First and second storey
windows of two over two lights repear the five bay motif of the west
elevation. Small delicate brackets straddle each column of the porch
and, when considered with the delicate filigree beneath the porch
entablature, suggest an arcade. The dominating feature of the entry
(west elevation) is the doorway with sidelights and transom light

of stained glass set in wood mullions. These surround a single frame

door with two wooden panels at the bottom and stained glass at the top.

About 1880 additional rooms were added to the south side of the
easté&rn“most room of the original house. Always referred to as ''the
annex,'' this addition includes a large dining room and a kitchen with
two pantries. A porch runs across the west side of the annex. The
final addition was made about 1890 when a second storey was added.
Four large bedrooms and a bathroom were built over that part of the
house constructed prior to 1880. A standing ridge tin roof was also
added at this time.

The interior of the Reichardt House still maintains the character of
the period in which it was finally completed. A twenty-three step
walnut stairway designed by Thomas Harding, architect for the second
storey addition, runs along the north wall of the central hallway.
The staircase has a walnut handrail with turned balusters and an
octagonal panelled walnut newel post.

The north parlor was redone in a tapestry wallpaper, with a geometric
paper on the cove cornered ceiling. The ceiling and wall papers are
separated. by a gold gilt picture molding. The south parlor,
authentically restored to its original condition, has an exceptional
dropped border of green palm tree design and ceiling of floral
patterned paper. Gas chandeliers added in 1895 hang at the centers
of the parlor ceiling and are still operable.
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7. Description (Reichardt House - Page 2)

Several noteworthy interior features include Victorian fireplace
mantels simulating veined black marble with a decorative grate in

the parlors, ornamental lattice-work over door openings and spanning
the hallway at midpoint, and door panels finished in a '"burl" look.
Symmetrical molding is used about all fenestration. A wide baseboard
with four inch floor boards complete the interior woodwork.

Despite its numerous additions the present structure has a unified
architectural appearance. It has been well preserved and remains
in a good state of repair.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Edward Reichardt House in Little Rock's historic Quapaw Quarter
district is the home of one of Arkansas' early German immigrant
families. Though most European immigrants arrived in Arkansas in
the latter part of the 19th century, several scattered settlements
were established earlier in the century. The Reichardt House
represents the success of the German immigrants in establishing
themselves in a new country.

Edward Reichardt (1844-1883) left his native Austria when he was
“eight years old. His older brother, John A. Reichardt, was the
first family member to immigrate to the United States, settling
in Little Rock, Arkansas, in 1848. Two years later two other
Reichardt brothers, Christopher and George, moved their families
to Little Rock. In 1852, the father of these three men, John A.
Reichardt, Sr., brought the rest of his family to settle in Little
Rock.

During the Civil War young Edward Reichardt worked in a tannery

in Little Rock. Following the war he was a clerk for his brother-
in-law, Frederick Kramer, in the general merchandise store of
Kramer and Miller. In 1870 Edward Reichardt formed a partnership
with Gottlieb Eicholz and the two established a merchandizing and
cotton trading business. Reichardt later owned part interest in
the first street railway system in Little Rock, and in a railroad
bridge across the Arkansas River at Little Rock. His career as
""one of Little Rock's most progressive and successful businessmen'
(Hempstead: History of Arkansas) was cut short by his untimely
death in 1883.

The marriage of Edward Reichardt to Miss Pauline Brandt took place

on New Year's Eve in 1872. Also a German immigrant, Pauline Brandt
came to the United States with her parents in 1853. After living

in Il1linois for a number of years, the Brandt family moved to

Little Rock in 1865. Her husband's early death left Pauline Brandt
Reichardt to raise their five children by herself; nevertheless,

she found time to take a leading role in local charity organizations.
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8. Significance (Reichardt House - Page 2)

Following Mrs. Reichardt's death in 1909, her widowed daughter,
Mrs. Jacob (Emma Reichardt) Hoeltzel, continued to live in the
Reichardt House. Mrs. Hoeltzel was the second child of Edward
and Pauline Reichardt, and the first child to be born in the
house. Like her mother, Emma Reichardt Hoeltzel was prominent in
both the social and civic life of Little Rock. She was a charter
member of the city's Women's Sufferage League, and a member of
the first League of Women Voters in Little Rock.

Miss Pauline Hoeltzel, only child of Jacob and Emma R. Hoeltzel,
now resides in the Reichardt House. Following a long teaching
career which included over forty years as professor of German
and English at the University of Arkansas at Little Rock, Miss
Hoeltzel now lives in retirement in her family home.

The Reichardt House has been altered a great deal since. Edward
Reichardt purchased it in 1874. The original house was a three
room structure built circa 1870. An ell-shaped structure with

a front entry porch filling in the elbow of the ell, the house
originally had its facade on the north elevation. In the late
1870's two rooms (now parlors) with a wide central hall were added
on the west. The ornate Victorian porch along the west addition
gave the house a new facade.

A second addition to the house was made about 1880 when a new
dining room, ktichen and pantries were added to the south of the
original structure. The final major addition was made about 1885,
and consisted of a second storey over the original house and its
first addition.

The interior of the Reichardt House is of the Victorian era. The
most interesting room, the north parlor, features tapestry wallpaper
put on in 1895. A shadow box on the east wall holds an 1849 wedding
wreath. A horsehair sofa along the north wall is reported to have
stood in the White House during Lincoln's presidency, and was
acquired by the Reichardt's in the 1920's.

Other interior features include wooden mantels in each room, mantels
with a marble-like finish in the two parlors, and a walnut stairway
in the central hall. Most of the rooms retain their 19th century
light fixtures which are gas-burning and still in use. A recent
wallpapering of the south parlor has restored this room to its Gilded
Age grandeur.
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8. Significance (Reichardt House - Page 3)

The Edward Reichardt House is a part of the late 19th century which
has somehow survived changing times. It typifies the Victorian
architecture prevalent in Arkansas from 1870 to 1900. The Reichardt
family is representative of the many European immigrants who settled
in Arkansas in the 19th century. The Reichardt's material success
is illustrated in the house which bears their name.
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